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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Board of School Directors
Phoenixville Area School District
Phoenixville, Pennsylvania
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Phoenixville Area School District as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
did not audit the financial statements of Phoenixville Public Library, which represent 1%, 6%, and 1%,
respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the Phoenixville Area School District. Those
statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Phoenixville Public Library, is based solely on the report
of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
District's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.
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Opinions
In our opinion, based on our report and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Phoenixville Area School District as of
June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.
Emphasis of Matter
Change in Accounting Principle
As described in Note 13 to the financial statements, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015,
the District adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. Our opinion in not modified with
respect to this matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 13, budgetary comparison information on
page 47, the schedule of post employment benefit obligation funding progress on page 48, the schedule
of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability on page 49, and the schedule of District
contributions on page 50 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained. during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 16, 2015, on our consideration of Phoenixville Area School District's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Phoenixville Area School District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.
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-3PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

The discussion and analysis of Phoenixville Area School District's financial performance provides
· an overall review of the District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The intent of
this discussion and analysis is to review the District's financial performance as a whole. Readers should
also review the transmittal letter, notes to the financial statements, and the financial statements.
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the new reporting model
adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement Number 34, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments
issued June 1999. Comparative information between the current year and the prior year is required to be
presented in the MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

•

In the budgeting process, the Board of School Directors was able to balance the budget with only
a .25 mill increase ($.25 per $1,000 of assessed value) to the taxpayers.

•

The District's unassigned fund balance for the General Fund is $6,261,096 (7.5%), which is just
under the state maximum. The district also has $5,385,922 committed and assigned for future
benefit increases (PSERS and Health Care). These factors are a major reason why the District
has an Aa2 (Moody's) credit rating.

•

The District's General Fund revenues increased by $2,686,415. The increase was due to the
increase in property taxes, a one-time state subsidy for prior debt service payments after the
state briefly lifted the moratorium and the increased state revenue for the state's share of PSERS.

•

Compared to the prior year, the District's expenditures (General Fund) increased by $3,432,772,
an increase of 4.4%. Major increases are salaries which increased by $1,093,963, PSERS costs
increased by $1,636,313 and debt service payments increased $1,230,090.

•

Transfers to other funds and the library were $2, 143,307.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GASB
Statement Number 34 and present both government-wide and fund level financial statements using both
the accrual basis and modified accrual basis of accounting, respectively.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The first two statements are government-wide financial statements - the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities. These provide both long-term and short-term information about
the District's overall financial status.
The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position
includes all of the government's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses
are accounted for in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The two government-wide statements report the District's net position and how they have
changed. Net position, the difference between the District's assets and liabilities, is one way to measure
the District's financial health or position.
Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net position are an indication of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.
To assess the overall health of the District, you need to consider additional non-financial factors,
such as changes in the District's property tax base and the performance of the students.
The government-wide financial statements of the District are divided into two categories:
•

Governmental Activities - All of the District's basic services are included here, such as instruction,
administration and community services. Property taxes and state and federal subsidies and
grants finance most of these activities.

•

Business-Type Activities - The District operates a food service operation and charges fees to staff
and students to cover the costs of the food service operation.

Fund Level Financial Statements

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the District's
operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. The Governmental funds statements tell
how the District's general services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future
spending. Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities
that the District operates like a business. For this District, this is our Food Service Fund. Fiduciary fund
statements provide information about financial relationships where the District acts solely as a trustee or
agent for the benefit of others.
•

Governmental Funds - Most of the District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on the determination of financial position and change in financial position, not on income
determination. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the
District's operations and the services it provides. Governmental fund information helps the reader
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the District's programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and
governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

•

Proprietary Funds - These funds are used to account for District activities that are similar to
business operations in the private sector; or where the reporting is focused on determining net
income, financial position, changes in financial position, and a significant portion of funding
through user charges. When the District charges customers for services it provides - whether to
outside customers or to other units in the District - these services are generally reported in
proprietary funds. The Food Service Fund is the District's proprietary fund and is the same as the
business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements.
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-5PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

Fund Level Financial Statements (Continued)

•

Fiduciary Funds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for some scholarship funds. All of the
District's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position. We
exclude these activities from the District's other financial statements because the District cannot
use these assets to finance its operations.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT- GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

The District's total net position deficit was $58,223,341 at June 30, 2015. This represents a
decrease of $541,572 over last year. The following table presents condensed financial information for the
net position deficit of the District as of June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014. The increase in total assets and
deferred outflows of resources is primarily due to the implementation of the new GASB 68 accounting
standard that requires pension contributions and other costs determined by PSERS to be recognized as a
deferred outflow.
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources have been restated for June 30, 2014 due to the
implementation of GASB 68 that requires the District's portion of the PSERS pension liability to be
recognized as a liability.
Schedule of Net Position (Deficit}
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
Governmental
Activities
(RESTATED)
2014
2015

Business-Type
Activities
2015

$ 62,252,451

$ 60,049,457

104,138,160
9,308,474

100,528,949
0

125,683
491,121
0

175,699,085

160, 578,406

616,804

15,024,576
212,513,098
6,822,000

15,707,561
202, 996, 773
0

234,359,674

Total

2014

(RESTATED)
2014

62,378, 134
104,629,281
9,308,474

$ 60, 167,211

631,142

176,315,889

161,209,548

179,556
0
0

186,983
0
0

15,204,132
212,513,098
6,822,000

15,894,544
202, 996, 773
0

218, 704,334

179,556

186,983

234,539,230

218,891,317

17,414,080
3, 167,312
(79,241I981)

14,651 ,934
3,406,810
(76, 184,672)

491,121
0
. (53,873)

513,388
0
(69,229)

17,905,201
3, 167,312
(79,295,854)

15, 165,322
3,406,810
~3,901)

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT) $ (58,660,589)

$ (58, 125, 928)

(58,223,341)

$ (57,681,769)

Current Assets
Capital Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
TOTAL ASSETS AND
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Net Position (Deficit):
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt
Restricted for: Capital Projects
Unrestricted (Deficit)

$

$

437,248

$

2015

$

117,754
513,388
0

444, 159

$

$

101I042, 337
0

The restricted net position in the amount of $3,167,312 represents funds set aside to fund capital
improvements, the replacement of and additions to public works and improvements, and for deferred
maintenance.
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

The result of this year's operations as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities. All
expenses are reported in the first column. Specific charges, grants, revenues and subsidies that directly
relate to specific expense categories are represented to determine the final amount of the District's
activities that are supported by other general revenues. The largest revenues are property taxes, local
taxes and the state basic education subsidy.
The following table presents condensed financial information for the Statement of Activities in a
different format to show total revenues for the year. Compared to the prior year, the District's total
revenues increased by $3,293, 110. The net increase in revenue in fiscal year 2015 compared to fiscal
year 2014 is primarily due to the increase in property taxes as well as increased state retirement
reimbursement subsidy due to increased PSERS rate. Expenses increased by $5,316,393, primarily due
to increases in Instruction expenses.

Statement of Activities
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

Go1.emmental
Actiliities
2015
2014
REVENUES:
Program Serl.ices:
Charges for Serl.ices
Operating Grants and Contributions
General Re1.enues:
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Grants, Subsidies and
Contributions Not Restricted
ln1.estment Earnings
Other Re1.enue
TOTAL REVENUES

$

EXPENSES:
Instruction
Support Serl.ices
Administration and Financial Support
Operation and Maintenance of
Plant SenAces
Pupil Transportation
Student Actiliities
Community Serl.ices
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Unallocated Depreciation Expense
Food Serl.ices
TOTAL EXPENSES
Transfers In (Out)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

$

306,381
10,964,038

Business-Type
Actiliities
2015
2014

Total
2015

2014

295,297
9,041,838

$ 786,094
549,356

$ 734,945
465,431

$ 1,092,475
11,513,394

$ 1,030,242
9,507,269

56,982,539
8,954,364

56,318,783
8,364,376

0
0

0
0

56,982,539
8,954,364

56,318,783
8,364,376

4,201,486
88,376
471,403
81,968,587

4,208,069
105,365
476,823
78,810,551

0
0
0
1,335,450

.0
0
0
1,200,376

4,201,486
88,376
471,403
83,304,037

4,208,069
105,365
476,823
80,010,927

47,839, 116
6,313,095
7,053,642

44,979,516
5,477,406
7,348,464

0
0
0

0
0
0

47,839, 116
6,313,095
7,053,642

44,979,516
5,477,406
7,348,464

6,389,964
4,494,318
1,598, 181
57,906
3,971,470
4,225,070
0
81,942,762

5,473,689
4,054,940
1,579,744
52,565
3,544,802
4,232,524
0
76,743,650

0
0
0
0
0
0
1,369, 105
_!269,105

0
0
0
0
0
0
1,251,824
1,251,824

6,389,964
4,494,318
1,598, 181
57,906
3,971,470
4,225,070
1,369, 105
83,311,867

5,473,689
4,054,940
1,579,744
52,565
3,544,802
4,232,524
1,251,824
77,995,474

(560,486)

(513,249)

26,744

4,923

(533,742)

(508,326)

(534,661)

$ 1,553,652

(541,572)

$ 1,507, 127

$

$

(6,911)

$

(46,525)

$
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-7PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

EXPENSES

The following table presents condensed financial information on the expenses of the District by
function. The table illustrates both the gross and net costs of services. Unrestricted grants, subsidies
and contributions are deducted to reflect the amount needed to be funded by other revenue sources. The
amount needed to be funded by other revenue sources increased by $3,428,965, or 5.38% more than the
prior year.
Expense Analysis
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
Cost of
Services
Expenses - Governmental Activities:
Instruction
Support Services
Administration and Financial Support
Operation and Maintenance of
Plant Services
Pupil Transportation
Student Activities
Community Services
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Unallocated Depreciation Expense
Transfers
TOTAL EXPENSES

Cost of
Services

2015

2014

2015

2014

$ 47,948,433

$ 44,979,516

$ 39,008,262

$ 37,385,409

6,313,095
7,053,642

5,477,406
7,348,464

6,237,039
7,256,064

5,405,416
7,348,464

6,389,964
4,494,318
1,598,181
57,906
3,971,470
4,225,070
560,486

5,473,689
4,054,940
1,579,744
52,565
3,544,802
4,232,524
513,249

5, 152,083
3,366, 187
1,507,579
57,906
3,971,470
4,225,070
560,486

5,097,406
2,859, 144
1,480,785
52,565
3,544,802
4,232,524
513,249

$ 82,612,565

$ 77,256,899

71,342,146

67,919,764

(4,201,486)

(4,208,069)

$ 67, 140,660

$ 63, 711,695

Less: Grants, Subsidies and
Contributions Not Restricted
AMOUNT NEEDED TO BE FUNDED BY
OTHER REVENUE SOURCES

The following table reflects condensed financial activities of the food service program, the only
business-type activity of the District.
Business-Type Activities
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
Total
Cost of
Services
Expenses - Business-Type Activities:
Food Services

Net
Cost of
Services

2015

2014

$ 1,369,105

$ 1,251,824

2015

$

6,911

2014
46,525
$
=====

The net cost of services for the year ended June 30, 2015 reflects a net cost of $6,911. The prior
year net cost was $46,525.
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

THE DISTRICT FUNDS

GENERAL FUND
At June 30, 2015, the District reported an unassigned fund balance of $6,261,096, which
represents 7.5% of total budgeted expenditures. The School Board committed fund balance of
$2,443,900 for future PSERS obligations. In addition, the District assigned fund balance of $2,942,022 is
for future health claims. The School Board of the Phoenixville Area School District consciously maintains
a modest fund balance needed to respond to unforeseen contingencies. This philosophy was established
in response to a healthy and growing economy within our District and accurate and timely forecasting
which allows the District to constantly monitor economic trends within our community. This philosophy
conforms to the Board's belief that the tax burden should be aligned with the current funding needs of the
District.

REVENUE
Revenues and other financing sources, which total $81,362, 720, increased $2,686,415 or 3.41 %,
over the prior year revenues. The following table reflects a comparison of current year revenues to prior
year revenues:
Re\enue
2015

$

Local Re\enues
State Sources
Federal Sources

$

% of
Total

66, 197, 196

81.36%

14,043,042

1.18%

17.26%

1,653,307

13.34%

1, 122,482

1.38%

262,310

30.50%

81,362,720

100.00%

$ 2,686,415

3.41%

State Sources
17.26%

Sources
1.09%

$

Percentage
Increase

770,798

Distribution of Funding Sources

Federal ------: _,__..

Increase
From 2014

L,,.----·
::c----

Local
Re\enues
81.36%

-9PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

The District balanced the budget by increasing the 2014-2015 tax rate to 28.89 mills from 28.64
mills. As a result of the increase in millage and changes in real estate assessments, revenues from
current real estate taxes increased by $639,257. Earned income tax collections increased by $328,361
compared to the prior year. State Subsidies increased in total by $1,653,307, with the state subsidy for
basic education decreasing by $6,583, sinking fund payments increased $672,587, and state share of
retirement increased $863,738. Federal Subsidies increased in total by $262,310 compared to the prior
year.

EXPENDITURES

Expenditures and other financing uses, which total $81,872,342 increased $3,432,772 over 20142015 expenditures. The expenditures were segregated into various programs depending on the functions
of the activity. These programs and the costs associated with each are as follows:

Expenditures
2015
Instruction
Support Services
Non-lnsfructional Services
Debt Service
Other Financing Uses
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
BY FUNCTION

Increase
(Decrease)
From 2014

% of
Total

$

45,506,106
22,646,884
1,607,567
9,968,478
2, 143,307

55.58%
27.66%
1.96%
12.18%
2.62%

$

81,872,342

100.00%

748,516
1,284,017
(24,742)
1,230,090
194,891

$

138,355
59,275
7,490
2,832
540

$ 3,432, 772

$

208,492

$

Distribution of Expenditures by Function
other Financirig

Debt Service~

. 12.18%

''··,,.,,

Non.,

'·,

l nstruqtional _~ .
',,
Se!Vlces
---..........
1.96%
Support_____...
Services
27.66%

Variance with
Final Budget Positive
(Negative)

Uses

/2.62%.

/,/·
Instruction
55.58%

- 10 PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

EXPENDITURES (Continued)

The increase in expenditures from the prior fiscal year is due to changes in a variety of
expenditures. Major increases are salaries which increased by $1,093,963, PSERS costs increased by
$1,636,313 and debt service payments increased $1,230,090.Transfers to other funds and the library
were $2, 143,307.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

At June 30, 2015, the District reported a fund balance of $34,405,897, which is an increase of
$3,345,116 over last year. During 2014-2015 this fund expended $6,580,130 in construction and capital
improvement expenditures as well as $281,363 in support services. Increases in this fund include new
bond proceeds in the amount of $9,965,000, bond premium of $202,422, and investment earnings of
$39,187.

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

At June 30, 2015, the District reported a fund balance of $3,167,312, which is a decrease of
$239,498 from the prior year. Increases in this fund during 2014-2015 include a $1,582,821 transfer from
the general fund and investment earnings of $253. The capital reserve fund expended $1,822,572 in
capital outlay expenditures.

GENERAL FUND BUDGET

During the fiscal year, the Board of School Directors authorizes revisions to the original budget to
accommodate differences from the original budget to the actual expenditures of the District. All
adjustments are again confirmed at the time the annual audit is accepted. This is done after the end of
the fiscal year in accordance with state law. A schedule showing the District's original and final budget
amounts compared with amounts actually paid and received is provided as required supplementary
information to the financial statements.
The School District's formally adopted budget filed with the State includes estimated amounts for
revenues and expenditures. In the Budgetary Comparison Schedule, the formally adopted budget
reflects revenues in the amount of $81,580,834 with actual revenues received in the amount of
$81,362,720, a negative variance in the amount of $218, 114. In addition, the formally adopted budget
reflects expenditures (including other financing uses) in the amount of $82,080,834 with the actual
expenditures in the amount of $81,872,342, a positive variance in the amount of $208,492.
The Budgetary Reserve includes amounts that will be funded for operating contingencies, such
as additional staffing, charter school tuition and the occurrence of events which are vaguely perceptible
during the time of the budget process but which nonetheless may require expenditures by the District
during the year of operation. If the expenditures materialize, funds are transferred from the Budgetary
Reserve to the appropriate area.

.~~;,f~~."~""~
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
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CAPITAL ASSETS
At June 30, 2015, the District had $104,629,281 invested in a broad range of capital assets,
including land, buildings and furniture and equipment. This amount represents a net increase (including
additions, deletions and depreciation) of $3,586,944 from last year.
The following schedule depicts the change in capital assets for the period July 1, 2014 through
June 30, 2015.
Schedule of Capital Assets

Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets:
Land
Land Improvements
Buildings
Construction in Progress
Furniture and Equipment
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS

$

504,962
3,491,885
126,695,234
759,346
16,419,662
147,871,089

Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Furniture and Equipment
TOTAL ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

Business-Tx:12e Activities:
Capital Assets:
Furniture and Equipment

$

0
31, 169
1,645,566
4,965,604
1,191,942
7,834,281

504,962
3,523,054
128,340,800
5,724,950
17,611,604
155,705,370

$

2,298,781
29,990,904
15,052,455

107,577
2,593,227
1,524,266

2,406,358
32,584,131
16,576,721

47,342, 140

4,225,070

51,567,210

$104, 138, 160

$

3,609,211

$

$

26,744

1,157,247

513,388

$

$

(22,267)

1,183,991

692,870

49,011

643,859

$

Ending
Balance

·-------

$100,528,949

Accumulated Depreciation for:
Furniture and Equipment
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

Increase
(Decrease)

$

491,121

··(j)g,iner
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

DEBT ADMINISTRATION
As of June 30, 2015, the District had total long-term debt of $118,893,000, an increase of
$4,028,000 over last year.

Principal
Outstanding
July 1, 2014
General Obligation Note
Series of 2000
General Obligation Bonds
Series of 2009
General Obligation Bonds
Series A of 2009
General Obligation Bonds
Series of 2010
General Obligation Bonds
Series of 2011
General Obligation Bonds
Series A of 2011
General Obligation Bonds
Series of 2012
General Obligation Bonds
Series A of2012
General Obligation Bonds
Series of2013
General Obligation Bonds
Series A of 2013
General Obligation Note
Series of 2014
General Obligation Bonds
Series A of 2014
SUBTOTAL
Less Deferred Amounts:
Issuance (Discounts) Premium
Refunding Deferred Charge
LONG-TERM DEBT

$

Maturities

4,720,000

$

580,000

Additions
(Refinancing)

Principal
Outstanding
June 30, 2015

$

$

0

4, 140,000

3,850,000

3,850,000

(2,600, 000)

0

9,945,000

760,000

0

9, 185,000

26,625,000

5,000

0

26,620,000

8,405,000

405,000

0

8,000,000

6,865,000

410,000

0

6,455,000

13,240,000

1,290,000

0

11,950,000

23,325,000

970,000

0

22,355,000

8,255,000

155,000

0

8,100,000

9,635,000

5,000

0

9,630,000

0

0

2,633,000

2,633,000

0
114,865,000

140,000
8,570,000

9,965,000
9,998,000

9,825,000
118,893,000

2, 194,240
(121,444)

130,680
0

202,422
92,439

2,265,982
(29,005)

$ 116,937,796

$ 8,700,680

$ 10,292,861

$121,129,977
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

In September, 2008 the Phoenixville Area School District Board of School Directors adopted a new
strategic plan that has focused our purpose and resources as we prepare for the 21st Century. A team of
80 people, including School Board members, administrators, teachers, parents, community members,
senior citizens and business leaders assembled to create the following five goals:
•

•
•

•
•

Parent Involvement Through Partnerships - Strengthen parent involvement though community
partnerships and programs that increase collaboration between parent and school entities from
Pre-K through graduation.
21st Century Technology - Increase access to, integration of, and understanding of 21st Century
technology skills that include students, teachers and parents.
Motivation and Achievement - Increase student motivation and achievement so that all students
perform at their highest level. We will recruit, hire, develop and retain a high quality and diverse
administrative, professional and support staff.
Social Interactions and Critical Communication - Improve social interactions and critical
communication across social, economic, education and cultural divides.
Diversity - Respect the diversity in our community (locally and globally) and integrate that culture
into the learning environment

The District updates the strategic plan. in accordance with requirements by the Pennsylvania
Department of Education. The district is currently working on a new strategic plan that will be completed
by the summer of 2016.

THE DISTRICT'S FUTURE
The District is projected to continue to experience enrollment growth in the next five years. Total
enrollment is projected to increase to over 4,000 students in the 2019-2020 school year. This is an
estimated increase of over 400 students over the next 5 year period.
Major projects to be completed by the fall of 2017 include the construction of elementary space to
meet enrollment increases and to replace the obsolete space at East Pikeland Elementary School and
the Kindergarten Center. These projects are estimated to cost $75 million.
In the future, the District will need to borrow additional funds to finance the proposed capital
projects. The District has a conceptual plan for the future financings. As in the past, the District could
use a series of interim financings as well as General Obligation Bonds. The financial impact of the
funding needed for the District's capital program is projected to increase debt service significantly over
the next three to five years.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, students, investors
and creditors with a general overview of the District's finances and to show the Board's accountability for
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or wish to request additional financial
information, please contact Stan Johnson, Executive Director of Operations at the Phoenixville Area
School District, 386 City Line Ave, Phoenixville, PA 19460, (484) 927-5000.
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Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2015

ASSETS
Current:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Taxes Receivable, Net
Due from Other Funds
Due from Other Governments
Other Receivables
Prepaid Expenses
Inventories
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

Primary Government
Governmental
Business-Type
Activities
Activities

$

1,090,933
48,987,767
5,473,888
(65,492)
1,878,392
1,161,963
3,725,000
0
62,252,451

$

104, 138, 160

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

41,856
0
0
65,492
9,454
0
0
8,881
125,683

Total

$

491,121

1, 132,789
48,987,767
5,473,888
0
1,887,846
1,161,963
3,725,000
8,881
62,378,134

Component
Unit
Phoenixville
Public Library

$

104,629,281

246,011
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
246,011
1,415,872

TOTAL ASSETS
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows of Resources: Pension Plan
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
LIABILITIES
Current:
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Bonds and Notes Payable Due Within One Year
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Unearned Revenues
Accrued Interest
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
Noncurrent:
Bonds and Notes Payable Due After One Year
Net Pension Liability
Compensated Absences
Accrued Post-Employment Benefits
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

_ _9-'-,3_0_8'--,4_74_ _ _ _ _ _o_

o

9,308,47 4

$ 175,699,085

$

616,804

$ 176,315,889

$

1,661,883

$

$

177,368
0
0
2, 188
0

$

$

20,157
0
0
0
0

3,531,046
6,014,000
4,820,986
48,587
609,957

3,708,414
6,014,000
4,820,986
50,775
609,957

-------~?.!9-~~.!§.??.._ ·----------1?_~L~9-~-· -------~~2?-~~.!J.~?.- ·-----------?-~~1?_~-·
115,115,977
95,429,000
1,577,302
390,819
212,513,098

0
0
0
0
0

115,115,977
95,429,000
1,577,302
390,819
212,513,098

0
0
0

6,822,000

0

6,822,000

0

0

TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows of Resources: Pension Plan
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for: Capital Projects
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
AND NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

17,414,080
3,167,312
(79,241,981)
(58,660,589)

$ 175,699,085

491,121
0
(53,873)
437,248

$

616,804

17,905,201
3,167,312
(79,295,854)
(58,223,341)

$ 176,315,889

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

1,415,872
0
225,854
1,641,726

$

1,661,883

~

.
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30. 2015
Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Program Revenues

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS

Expenses

Governmental Activities:
Instruction
Instructional Student Support
Administrative and Financial Support Services
Operation and Maintenance of Plant Operation
Pupil Transportation
Student Activities
Community Services
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Unallocated Depreciation Expense
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$ 47,839,116
6,313,095
7,053,642
6,389,964
4,494,318
1,598, 181
57,906
3,971,470
4,225,070
81,942,762

(110,096)
0
0
(105,683)
0
(90,602)
0
0
0
(306,381)

$ (8,830,075)
(76,056)
0
(929,776)
(1,128,131)
0
0
0

1,369, 105

(793,559)

(541,891)

$ 83,311,867

$ (1,099,940)

$(11,505,929)

$

$

$

Business-Type Activities:
Food Services
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Component-Unit Activities:
Phoenixville Public Library

Charges For
Services

Operating
Grants and
Contributions

968,069

$

(128,207)

0
(10,964,038)

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

$ (38,898,945)
(6,237,039)
(7,053,642)
(5,354,505) .
(3,366, 187)
(1,507,579)
(57,906)
(3,971,470)
(4,225,070)
(70,672,343)

$

0

Total

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

$ (38,898,945)
(6,237,039)
(7,053,642)
(5,354,505)
(3,366, 187)
(1,507,579)
(57,906)
(3,971,470)
(4,225,070)
(70,672,343)

(33,655)

(33,655)

Transfers
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Assets -July 1, 2014
Prior Period Adjustment
NET POSITION (DEFICIT) - JULY 1, 2014 (RESTATED)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

______ J~~-'!:.~~-~L

$ 56,982,539

0

56,982,539

0

8,954,364
4,201,486
88,376
471,403

0
0
0
0

8,954,364
4,201,486
88,376
471,403

0
0
1,041
5,873

_____!_Q,~~-~c1?_~-- ________________Q__

_____?Q,_~~.§.._1§.§._

-----------~'~.'.)_'!_,

(560,486)

26,744

(533,742)

533,742

(534,661)

(6,911)

(541,572)

(43,862)

444,159
0
444,159

32,569,231
(90,251,000)
(57,681, 769)

2,132,208
(446,620)
1,685,588

437,248

$ (58,223,341)

$ 1,641,726

32,125,072
(90,251,000)
(58, 125,928)
$ (58,660,589)

NET POSITION (DEFICIT) - JUNE 30, 2015

$

_JJ!_q:.~!-~:.~:1--~L --~-----J~~2 ?_~~L _JJ!Q·!:~~,_~~.'.3J_ --~-------------q __

(255,344)

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes, Net
Public Utility. Realty, Earned Income and Realty Transfer Taxes,
Personal Taxes, Levied for General Purposes, Net
Grants, Subsidies and Contributions Not Restricted
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous Income
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND SPECIAL ITEMS

Component
Unit
Phoenixville
Public Library

$

azner

~
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2015
Capital
Projects
Fund

General
Fund

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Taxes Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Due from Other Governments
Other Receivables
Prepaid Expenses

$

TOTAL ASSETS

1,090,933
14,743,711
5,473,888
509,404
1,878,392
169,243
0

$ 23,865,571

Capital
Reserve
Fund
$

0
2,867,077
0
314,970
0
0
0

$

$ 36,094,699

$

3,182,047

$ 63,142,317

$

$

14,735

$

0
31,376,979
0
0
0
992,720
3,725,000

Total
Governmental
Funds

-

1,090,933
48,987,767
5,473,888
824,374
1,878,392
1,161,963
3,725,000

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Due to other funds
Unearned Revenues
TOTAL LIABILITIES

$ 2,329,343
4,828,556
380,462
48,587

------~~~?-~~~::~--

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes

1,179,398

0
509,404

0

0

0

----·------~-&~?2§.Q?__

______-:~~:3_!&9_~--

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCES
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

0

3,523,476
4,828,556
889,866
48,587

_________ .:J.i~~:3-~-· ·-------~~?~Q~~§.~--

0

0

0
2,443,900
2,942,022
6,261,096
11,647,018

3,725,000
0
30,680,897
0
34,405,897

0

$ 23,865,571

$ 36,094,699

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

$

3,167,312

3,725,000
2,443,900
36,790,231
6,261,096
49,220,227

3,182,047

$ 63,142,317

0
3, 167,312

0

$

·-------'!~~2!~~.9-~--

.
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2015

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

$

49,220,227

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as assets in governmental funds.
The cost of assets is $147,871,089, and the accumulated depreciation
is $47,342,140.

104,138,160

Some of the District's revenues will be collected after year end and
are, therefore, not reported in the funds statements.

4,631,605

Some of the District's liabilities are not due and payable in the
current period and are, therefore, not reported in the fund
statements:
Bonds and Notes Payable
Accrued Interest on the Bonds
Net Pension Liability
Accrued Post-Employment Benefits
Compensated Absences

$121,129,977
609,957
95,429,000
390,819
1,577,302

(219,137,055)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are
applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the
fund statements
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension Plan
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension Plan

$

9,308,474

-~(6-'--,8_22,000)

TOTAL NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

2,486,474
$

(58,660,589)

~
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30. 2015

General
Fund

Revenues:
Local Sources:
Real Estate Taxes
Realty Transfer Tax
Earned Income Taxes
Other Taxes
Earnings from Investments
Other Local Revenues
State Sources
Federal Sources
TOTAL REVENUES

45,506,106
22,646,884
1,607,567
0
9,968,478
79,729,035

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Bond Proceeds
Bond Proceeds - Refunding Bonds
Payment to Bond Refunding Escrow Agent
Bond Premium
lnterfund Transfers In
lnterfund Transfers Out
Transfer - Component Unit
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30, 2015

Debt
Service
Fund

$
0
$
0
797,706
0
0
7,392,331
0
0
197,900
0
0
48,936
39,187
253
777,784
0
0
14,043,042
0
0
1,122,482
0
0
_____ §_t~?-~~Z?_Q__ ·---------~~2.2_!?.L ·-------------?-~?__

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

Fund Balances - July 1, 2014

Capital
Reserve
Fund

$ 56,982,539

Expenditures:
Instruction
Support Services
Non-Instructional Services
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

Capital
Projects
Fund

0
281,363
0
6,580,130
0
6,861,493

$

Total
Governmental
Funds
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

_________________Q__

0
0
0
1,822,572
0
1,822,572

0
33,000
0
0
33,000

$ 56,982,539
797,706
7,392,331
197,900
88,376
777,784
14,043,042
1,122,482

-----~12:!:.Q?2_1_~.9-45,506,106
22,961,247
1,607,567
8,402,702
9,968,478
88,446,100

_______1_~~~-~~~?-~-- ______(~2.~.?..~2.'.?.Q.~2- ·-----~12.?.?..?2~-1_~)_ ________ j}.~2.QQQ2_ ____ J?2.9-'±~2~'±9]_
0

0
0
0
0
0
(1,609,565)
(533,742)
(2, 143,307)

9,965,000
0
0
202,422
0
0
0
10, 167,422

0
0
0
1,582,821
0
0
1,582,821

(509,622)

3,345, 116

(239,498)

12,156,640

31,060,781

$ 11,647,018

$ 34,405,897

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

0
2,633,000
(2,600,000)
0
0
0
0
33,000

3,406,810

$

3,167,312

$

9,965,000
2,633,000
(2,600,000)
202,422
1,582,821
(1,609,565)
(533,742)
9,639,936

0

2,595,996

0

46,624,231

0

$ 49,220,227

- 19 PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

$

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

2,595,996

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:
Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
Capital Outlay
Depreciation Expense

$

7,834,282
(4,225,070)

3,609,212

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the
statement of net position.
Bond Proceeds
Principal Payments on Long-Term Term Liabilities
Bond Issuance Premium

$ (12,598,000)
8,570,000
(164, 181)

(4,192,181)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

566,427

Some of the expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.
Accrued Post-Employment Benefits
Accrued Interest on the Bonds
Compensated Absences

$

(128,288)
21,767
(316,068)

(422,589)

6,372,474
(9,064,000)

(2,691,526)

Governmental funds report district pension contributions as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefits
earned net of employee contributions is reported as pension expense
District Pension Contributions
Cost of Benefits Earned Net of Employee Contributions

$

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

$

(534,661)
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- 20PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2015

Food
Services

ASSETS
Current:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Inventories
Due from Other Governments
Due from Other Funds
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

$

________ J~~l~~9__

Non-Current:
Furniture and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

41,856
8,881
9,454
65,492

1,183,991
(692,870)
491,121

$

616,804

$

177,368
2,188

LIABILITIES
Current:
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
TOTAL LIABILITIES

________ J.?..~l~-~~--

NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets
Unrestricted (Deficit)
TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

491,121
(53,873)
437,248

$

616,804
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Food
Services
Operating Revenues:
Food Service Revenue

_J__ _.?..~~-·-~~~--

Operating Expenses:
Professional and Contract Services
Donated Commodities Consumed
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

1,259,600
60,494
49,011
1,369,105

OPERATING LOSS
Non-Operating Revenues:
State Sources
Federal Sources
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES

32,942
508,949
541,891

LOSS BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS

(33,655)

Contributions:
Capital Contributions

26,744

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

(6,911)
444,159

Net Position - July 1, 2014
NET POSITION - JUNE 30, 2015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

$

437,248

- 22 PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Food
Services
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Users
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$

774,855
(1,318,690)
______ J~1-~!.~~-~L

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
State Sources
Federal Sources
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

33,817
520,229
554,046

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

10,211

Cash and Cash Equivalents - July 1, 2014
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JUNE 30, 2015
Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Capital Financing Activities:
Contributed Capital - Equipment

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Operating Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss
to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Inventories
lnterfund Receivables
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

31,645

$

41,856

$

26,744

$

(575,546)

49,011
3,740
(13,613)
11,277
(18,704)

$

(543,835)

ainer

.

~C_om-±p~a_n_y,__ __
A Professional Corporation
Certified Public Accountants
Business Consultants

- 23 PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

PrivatePurpose
Trusts

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Agency
Funds

$

17,983

$

117,338

$

0

$

117,338

$

17,983

LIABILITIES
Due to Student Groups

NET POSITION
Restricted for Scholarships
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

0

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

17,983
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

PrivatePurpose
Trusts
Additions:
Contributions
Interest Income
TOTAL ADDITIONS

$

Deductions:
Grants

26,948
75
27,023

23,992

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

3,031

Net Position - July 1, 2014

14,952

NET POSITION - JUNE 30, 2015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

$

17,983
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- 25 PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Phoenixville Area School District's (the District's) financial statements are prepared in accordance
· with accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites States of America (GAAP). The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and
local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also
required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. Although the District has the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that
date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the District has chosen not to do so. The more
significant accounting policies, established in GAAP and used by the District, are discussed below.

A Reporting Entity
The School District is governed by an elected Board of Directors. Accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require that the financial statements present the School District
and its component units, entities for which the School District is considered to be financially accountable.
Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the School
District's operations and so data from these units are required to be combined with data of the primary
School District. Each discretely presented component unit, on the other hand, is required to be reported
in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from
the School District.
Joint Ventures
The School District participates in a joint venture with eleven other school districts of Chester
County, Pennsylvania in the operation of a Center for Arts and Technology (the "Vo-Tech School"). The
Vo-Tech School is governed by a joint board, which is composed of representative school board
members of the participating schools. Each member pays a pro-rata share of the operating cost of the
Vo-Tech School based on the number of students from the twelve member districts. The financial
statements of the Vo-Tech School are available at the Chester County Intermediate Unit located at 455
Boot Road, Downingtown, PA 19335.
Discretely Presented Component Unit:
The Phoenixville Public Library serves the Phoenixville Area School District community. The
Library's governing board approves its own budget. However, the Library is fiscally dependent upon the
School District because it receives a substantial portion of its operating funds from them and its building is
occupied rent-free from the School District. The Library is presented as a governmental fund type and
has a June 30 year end. Copies of the Library's financial statements may be obtained at the Library
administrative office.
B. Basis of Presentation
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the non fiduciary activities of the School District and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support.
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
· Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the School District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 30 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as
under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Only a portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the School District.
The School District reports the following major government funds:
General Fund - The General Fund is the School District's primary operating fund. It accounts for
all financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Capital Projects & Capital Reserve Funds - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for
financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other
than those financed by enterprise operations. The Capital Reserve fund is used to account for
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are assigned for expenditures of future capital projects.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
· C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)
The School District reports the following major proprietary funds:
Food Service Fund - The Food Service Fund (an Enterprise Fund) is used to account for the
operations of the School District's school cafeterias that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to a private business enterprise where the intent of the governing body is that the cost of
providing goods or services to the school population on a continuing basis will be recovered or
financed primarily through user charges.
Additionally the School District reports the following fund types:
Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the School District in a
trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, or other governments.
These include private-purpose trust funds and agency funds. Private-purpose trust funds account
for resources, including both principal and earnings, which must be expended in accordance with
a trust agreement, and are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds.
Agency funds are purely custodial and thus do not involve measurement of the result of
operations.
Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent
that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. School districts also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance
for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The School District
has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues in'clude all taxes.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the Food Service Enterprise Fund are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
For purposes of the statements of cash flows of proprietary funds, cash equivalents include all
highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the School District's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
· D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or
£ill:ill.y
Deposits and Investments
Under Section 440.1 of the Public School Code of 1949, as amended, the School District is
permitted to invest funds consistent with sound business practices in the following types of investments:
Obligations of (a) the United States of America or any of its agencies or instrumentalities
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America, (b) the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and
credit of the Commonwealth, or (c) any political subdivision of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit
of the political subdivision.
Deposits in savings accounts or time deposits or share accounts of institutions insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance
Corporation to the extent that such accounts are so insured and, for any amounts above
the insured maximum, provided that approved collateral as provided by law therefore
shall be pledged by the depository.
Receivables and Payables
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). Any
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances."
All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of any allowance for uncollectibles. The
allowance for uncollectibles was $414,238 at June 30, 2015.
Inventories
Inventory in the Food Service Fund consists of government donated commodities which were
valued at estimated fair market value at donation and valued at cost using the first-in first-out (FIFO)
method.
Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment and construction in progress, are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the School District as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are
not capitalized.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Q. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or
,!;_g!J.l1y (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during construction is not capitalized.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Furniture and Equipment

20 Years
20 Years
5-20 Years

Deferred Outflows of Resources
The District reports decreases in net assets that relate to future periods as deferred outflows of
resources in the government-wide and proprietary funds statement of net position. The District reports
deferred outflows of resources for contributions made to the District's defined benefit pension plans
between the measurement date of the net pension liabilities from those plans and the end of the District's
fiscal year. No deferred outflows of resources affect the governmental funds financial statements in the
current fiscal year.
Deferred Inflows of Resources
The District's statements of net position and its governmental funds report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element reflects an increase in net
assets that applies to a future period(s). Deferred inflows of resources are reported in the District's
various statements of net position for actual pension plan investment earnings in excess of the expected
amounts included in determining pension expense. In its governmental funds, the only deferred inflow of
resources is for revenues that are not considered available. The District will not recognize the related
revenues until they are available (collected not later than 60 days after the end of the District's fiscal year)
under the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, unavailable revenues from property taxes
are reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.
Compensated Absences
It is the School District's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
and sick pay benefits. Compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund.
Sick Leave Pay - Sick leave is granted as appropriate with budgetary provisions being made
annually for the estimated cost of substitute personnel. Employees who retire under the Pennsylvania
School Employees Retirement System are paid at per diem rates ranging from $20 to $140 for each
unused sick leave day. The District estimates its liability for unused sick days, including a provision for
employer social security tax, at June 30, 2015 to be $700,808.

·
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
· D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or
£.lliilly (Continued)

Compensated Absences (Continued)
Accrued Severance Pay - Instructional, Secretarial, and Support personnel that have completed
at least ten years of credited School District service and that meet retirement eligibility receive severance
pay in the form of compensation. Instructional personnel receive $110 for each year of service in the
District. Secretarial and Support personnel receive $125 for each year of service in the District. These
payments are recorded as an expenditure in the period paid or as an accrued expenditure in the fiscal
year of separation. Termination compensation payable in future years, including a provision for employer
social security tax, amounts to $733,963 at June 30, 2015.
Vacation and Personal Days - School District employees who are required to work on a twelvemonth schedule are credited with vacation and personal days at rates which vary with length of service or
job classification. If separation of service occurs in the year subsequent to earning, then the unused
balance of what was earned in the prior year is paid at separation. The liability at June 30 represents
vacation earned at that date that will be taken in the subsequent year. The liability payable, including a
provision for employer social security tax, amounts to $142,531 at June 30, 2015.

Long-Term Obligations
In the governmentcwide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the straight-line method which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred
charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as support service
expenditures.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position
Government-wide and proprietary fund net position is divided into three components:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - Consists of the historical cost of capital
assets less accumulated depreciation and less any debt that remains outstanding that
was used to finance those assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
· ~ Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or
£lli:!i1Y (Continued)
Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position (Continued)
Restricted for: Capital Projects - Consists of the capital projects fund fund-·balance that is
restricted by the District for capital outlays.
Unrestricted - Consists of all other net position reported in this category.

Governmental Fund Balances
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows:
Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Restricted - Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes because of state or
federal laws, or externally imposed by grantors or creditors.
Committed - Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal
action by the Board of Directors resolution.
Assigned - Amounts the District intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent can be
__e2<_pJ(3S~E)d __ by_ th~_ f3ciard_ ()f_[)irectors or _by an_officLal or p_ody to \fl'.D icb tb~ ~()-~ir9 of_
Directors delegates the authority.
Unassigned - Amounts available for any purpose. Positive amounts are reported only in
the General Fund.
The Board of Directors establishes (and modifies and rescinds) fund balance commitments by
passage of a resolution. The District's policy is to first apply expenditure toward restricted fund balances
followed by committed fund balances and then to assigned fund balances before using unassigned fund
balances.
The District will strive to maintain a total of assigned and unassigned fund balance for the general
fund of not less than eight percent of the total budgeted general fund expenditures for each fiscal year,
which is the maximum percentage that is currently allowed by Pennsylvania Law. The total fund balance
for the general fund, consisting of nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned
balances, may exceed eight percent.

NOTE 2 - Budgetary Information
Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. An annual appropriated budget is adopted for the general fund. All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Project-length financial plans are adopted for all capital projects
funds.

.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 2 - Budgetary Information Continued)
The School District follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:
1.

Prior to May 31, the School Board submits a proposed operating budget for the fiscal
year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them for the general fund.

2.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

3.

Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

4.

Legal budgetary control is maintained by the School Board at the department level.
Transfers between departments, whether between funds or within a fund or revisions that
alter the total revenues and expenditures of any fund must be approved by the School
Board.

5.

Budgetary data are included in the School District's management information system and
are employed as a management control device during the year for the general fund.

6.

Budgets for the general fund are adopted substantially on the modified accrual basis of
accounting, which is consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

NOTE 3 - Deposits and Investments
Deposits - At year end, the total carrying amount of the School District's checking, savings and
money market deposits was $1,514, 121, and the corresponding bank balance was $1,626,011.
Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the School District's deposits may not be returned to it. The School District's policy for custodial
credit risk requires that all deposits to be purchased in the name of the School District. The School
District maintains cash balances at several financial institutions. The accounts at these institutions are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. In the normal course of business, the School
District may have deposits that exceed insured balances.
Investments - Statutes authorize the District to invest in U.S. Government Agency bonds, time or
share accounts or institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or Federal Savings
and Loan Insurance Corporation or in certificates of deposit when they are secured by proper bond or
collateral, repurchase agreements, State Treasurer's Investment pools, or mutual funds.
All funds in the Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund, Pennsylvania Local Government
Investment Trust, and Pennsylvania Treasurer's Investment Program are invested in accordance with
Section 440.1 of the School Code. These funds operate and are authorized under the Intergovernmental
Cooperation Act of 1972. Each school district owns a prorata share of each investment or deposit which
is held in the name of the Fund. Certificates of deposit or other fixed-term investments purchased by the
School District through the Fund's administrator are purchased in the name of the School District.
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 3 - Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Interest Rate Risk - The District's investment policy requires the mitigation of interest rate risk as
a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from changing interest rates.
Credit Risk - The District's investment policy requires the mitigation of credit risk to ensure safety
of principle.
Concentration of Credit Risk - The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in
any one issuer, as long as it is in accordance with the requirements of its investment policy. The District's
investments are concentrated in Certificates of Deposit 3%, US Government Issues 2%, and investment
savings accounts 95%.

The School District's investments at June 30, 2015 consisted of the following:

Credit Rating
Pooled Investments:
Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund:
General Fund Accounts
Capital Projects Fund Accounts
Capital Reserve Fund Accounts
TOTAL
Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust:
General Fund Accounts

AAA
AAA

Fair Value

$

AAA

12,749,492
31,019,101
2,867,077

------~-~ ,~?-~,~?_Q
AAA

___________ u, 1?_4

TOTAL POOLED INVESTMENTS
Other Investments:
U.S. Government Securities:
General Fund Accounts (Market Value $660,712)
Capital Projects Fund Accounts (Market Value $357,878)
Certificates of Deposit:
General Fund Accounts

660,712
357,878

AAA
AAA
Not Applicable

1 ,256,323
2,274,913

TOTAL OTHER INVESTMENTS
TOTAL INVESTMENTS

$

48,987,767
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 4 - Taxes Receivable
Other
Funds

General
Real Estate Taxes
Transfer Taxes
Earned Income Taxes
Personal Taxes

$

0
0
0
0
0

$

(414,238)

Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles
NET TAXES RECEIVABLE

2,711,139
133,457
116,789
2,926,741
5,888,126

$

5,473,888

Total

$ 2,638,424
133,457
116,789
2,999,456
5,888,126

0
0

$

(414,238)
$

5,473,888

At the end of the current fiscal year, the District reported deferred inflows of resources, related to
unavailable real estate and earned income tax revenue, in the amount of $4,631,605 in the governmental
funds. In addition, the District reported unearned revenue in the amount of $48,587 in the governmental
funds.

NOTE 5 - lnterfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers
lnterfund
Payables

lnterfund
Receivables
General Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Capital Reserve Fund
Proprietary Fund - Food Services

$

509,404
0
314,970
65,492

$

380,462
509,404
0
0

$

889,866

$

889,866

lnterfund transfers were as follows:
Transfer to
Other Funds
General Fund
Capital Reserve Fund
Proprietary Fund - Food Services (Contributed Capital)
Component Unit - Library

Transfer from
Other Funds

$

2, 143,307
0
0
0

$

0
1,582,821
26,744
533,742

$

2, 143,307

$

2,143,307

The general fund makes interfund transfers to the capital projects fund for future capital outlay
and to the component unit to provide appropriations to fund operations. The general fund also
contributed equipment to the proprietary fund for the purpose of providing kitchen equipment in the form
of contributed capital.
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PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 6 - Capital Assets
Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets:
Land
Land Improvements
Buildings
Construction in Progress
Furniture and Equipment
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS

$

504,962
3,491,885
126,695,234
759,346
16,419,662

0
31, 169
1,645,566
5,728,722
1,191,942

$

0
0
0
763, 118
0

$

504,962
3,523,054
128,340,800
5,724,950
17,611,604

2,298,781
29,990,904
15,052,455

107,577
3,113,919
1,003,574

520,692
(520,692)

2,406,358
32,584, 131
16,576,721

47,342, 140

4,225,070

0

51,567,210

763,118

$104,138,160

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET
$ 100,528,949

$

Accumulated Depreciation for:
Machinery and Equipment
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

$

Decreases

__ _:1_4 ?1?_~J_,9_?~-· --- -__ ?}i_~?J?_~~-. -- -- -__?_~~JJ_1 ?_. -__ _1?~,-~9-~,_~?_Q_

Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Furniture and Equipment
TOTAL ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION

Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets:
Machinery and Equipment

Increases

Ending
Balance

1,157,247

$

4,372,329

$

26,744

643,859

$

513,388

0

$

$

(22,267)_

$

0

49,011

$

0

$

0

1,183,991

692,870

$

491,12'1

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the School District as follows:
Governmental Activities - Unallocated
Business-Type Activities
TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

$

4,225,070
49,011

$

4,274,081
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NOTE 7 - Long-Term Debt
Principal
Outstanding
Jull'. 1, 2014
General Obligation Note
Series of 2000

$

Maturities

4,720,000

$

580,000

Additions
(Refinancing)

Principal
Outstanding
June 30, 2015

$

$

0

4,140,000

General Obligation Bonds
Series of 2009

3,850,000

3,850,000

(2,600, 000)

0

General Obligation Bonds
Series A of 2009

9,945,000

760,000

0

9, 185,000

General Obligation Bonds
Series of 2010

26,625,000

5,000

0

26,620,000

General Obligation Bonds
Series of 2011

8,405,000

405,000

0

8,000,000

General Obligation Bonds
Series A of 2011

6,865,000

410,000

0

6,455,000

General Obligation Bonds
Series of 2012

13,240,000

1,290,000

0

11,950,000

General Obligation Bonds
Series A of 2012

23,325,000

970,000

0

22,355,000

General Obligation Bonds
Series of 2013

8,255,000

155,000

0

8,100,000

General Obligation Bonds
Series A of 2013

9,635,000

5,000

0

9,630,000

0

0

2,633,000

2,633,000

0
114,865,000

140,000
8,570,000

9,965,000
9,998,000

9,825,000
118,893,000

2, 194,240

130,680

202,422

2,265,982

(121,444)

0

92,439

(29,005)

$ 116,937,796

$ 8,700,680

$ 10,292,861

$ 121,129,977

General Obligation Note
Series of 2014
General Obligation Bonds
Series A of 2014
Less: Deferred Amounts:
Issuance (Discounts)
Premium
Refunding Deferred
Charge
LONG-TERM DEBT
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NOTE 7 - Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Outstanding
Principal
General Obligation Note, Series of 2000. Original principal
amount of $10,000,000, maturing through September 30, 2020.
The note was advanced by Emmaus General Authority under the
Bond Pool Program. Interest is charged at a variable rate equal
to the Weekly Rate of the underlying bonds plus .53%.
The rate at June 30, 2015 was .07%.
General Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2009. Original principal amount of
$13,475,000, maturing through August 1, 2024, bearing interest from 2.0% to 4.4%.
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2010. Original principal amount of
$26,640,000, maturing through May 15, 2031, bearing interest from 2.0% to 4.0%.

$

4,140,000

9, 185,000

26,620,000

General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2011. Original principal amount of
$9,700,000, maturing through May 15, 2031, bearing interest from 2.0% to 3.6%.

8,000,000

General Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2011. Original principal amount of
$6,875,000, maturing through February 15, 2025, bearing interest from 2.0% to 2.8%.

6,455,000

General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012. Original principal amount of
$15,275,000, maturing through May 15, 2024, bearing interest at 2.0% to 2.5%.

11,950,000

General Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2012. Original principal amount of
$25,400,000, maturing through May 15, 2031, bearing interest at 2.0% to 5.0%.

22,355,000

General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2013. Original principal amount of
$9,205,000, maturing through November 15, 2030, bearing interest at .25% to 4.0%.

8, 100,000

General Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2013. Original principal amount of
$9,835,000, maturing through May 15, 2031, bearing interest at .30% to 4.0%.

9,630,000

General Obligation Note, Series of 2014. Original principal amount of
$2,633,000, maturing through August 1, 2016, bearing interest at .70%.

2,633,000

General Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2014. Original principal amount of
$9,965,000, maturing through May 15, 2031, bearing interest at .50% to 5.0%.

9,825,000

TOTAL

$ 118,893,000
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NOTE 7 - Long-Term Debt (Continued)
The annual requirements to amortize all debts outstanding as of June 30, 2015 are as follows:
Year Ended:

Interest

Principal
6,014,000
6,179,000
6,220,000
6,435,oop
6,655,000
36,135,000
41,950,000
9,305,000

$

3,757,227
3,627,999
3,484,717
3,287,248
3,087,986
12,409,620
6,264,411
333,951

$

$ 118,893,000

$

36,253, 159

$ 155,146,159

$

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
2031
TOTAL MATURITIES

Total
9,771,227
9,806,999
9,704,717
9,722,248
9,742,986
48,544,620
48,214,411
9,638,951

NOTE 8 - Changes in Other Long-Term Liabilities
Balance
July 1,
2014
Accrued Vacation
Accrued Severance and Sick Days
TOTAL

$

219,605
1,155,841

$

1,375,446

Additions

Balance
June 30,
2015

Reductions

$

0
278,930

$

77,074
0

$

142,531
1,434,771

$

278,930

$

77,074

$

1,577,302

======

NOTE 9 - Deficit Net Position
A deficit of $58,223,341 exists in the District-wide net position as of June 30, 2015 (the net
position deficit for governmental activities as of June 30, 2015 is $58,660,589, while the net position for
business-type activities as of June 30, 2015 is $437,248). The deficit is a result of the District's adoption
of Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.

NOTE 10 - Fund Balances - General Fund
Committed:
Future PSERS Obligations
Assigned:
Future Health Claims
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GENERAL FUND

$

2,443,900
2,942,022
6,261,096

$

11 ,647I01 8
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NOTE 11 - Prior Period Adjustment
Net position as of June 30, 2014 has been restated as a result of the District's adoption of
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The statement required the inclusion of the net
pension liability related to the pension plans on the statement of net position for the governmental
activities and business-type activities. The effect of the restatement was to reduce District-wide net
position as of July 1, 2014 by $90,251,000. The restatement had no effect on the net position for
business-type activities. Therefore, the net position for governmental activities as of July, 1 2014 was
reduced by $90,251,000.
Net position as of June 30, 2014 has been restated as a result of the Phoenixville Public Library's
(a component unit of the District) conclusion that the Phoenixville Public Library Foundation (formerly a
component unit of the Phoenixville Public Library) no meets the requirements to be a component of the
Library as of June 30, 2014. The Library's decision is due to the fact that the Foundation is no longer
fiscally dependent on the Library for funding, as well as the fact that the Foundation now elects their
board of directors independent of the Library. The effect of the restatement was to reduce component
unit net position as of July 1, 2014 by $446,620.

NOTE 12 - Property Tax
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of February 1. Taxes are levied on
July 1 and payable in the following periods:
Discount Period - July 1 to August 31 - 2% of Gross Levy
Flat Period - September 1 to October 31
Penalty Period - November 1 to Collection - 10% of Gross Levy
Lien Date - January 15
The following is a detail analysis of current year tax revenues:
Assessed Valuation, Adjusted by
Authorized Revisions
Approved Tax Rate in Mills
GROSS LEVY

$

Plus Penalties Applied
Deductions:
Discounts
Assessment Changes and Exonerations
State Property Tax Reduction Allocation
Taxes Receivable
NET CURRENT YEAR PROPERTY TAX REVENUE

2,032,589,724
28.890
58,721,517
139,312

(969,688)
(55,450)
(1,326,753)
(1,871,663)

$

54,637,275

·
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NOTE 13 - Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans
Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Public School Employees' Retirement System (PSERS) and additions to/deductions from
PSERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PSERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms investments are reported at fair value.
Plan description
PSERS is a governmental cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides
retirement benefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The members
eligible to participate in the System include all full-time public school employees, part-time hourly public
school employees who render at least 500 hours of service in the school year, and part-time per diem
public school employees who render at least 80 days of service in the school year in any of the reporting
entities in Pennsylvania. PSERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at
www.psers.state.pa. us.
Benefits provided
PSERS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Members are eligible for monthly
retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62 with at least 1 year of credited service; (b) age 60 with 30 or
more years of credited service; or (c) 35 or more years of service regardless of age. Act 120 of 2010 (Act
120) preserves the benefits of existing members and introduced benefit reductions for individuals who
become new members on or after July 1, 2011. Act 120 created two new membership classes,
Membership Class T-E (Class T-E) and Membership Class T-F (Class T-F). To qualify for normal
retirement, Class T-E and Class T-F members must work until age 65 with a minimum of 3 years of
service or attain a total combination of age and service that is equal to or greater than 92 with a minimum
of 35 years of service. Benefits are generally equal to 2% or 2.5%, depending upon membership class, of
the member's final average salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years of credited
service. For members whose membership started prior to July 1, 2011, after completion of five years of
service, a member's right to the defined benefits is vested and early retirement benefits may be elected.
For Class T-E and Class T-F members, the right to benefits is vested after ten years of service.
Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five years of credited
service. Such benefits are generally equal to 2% or 2.5%, depending upon membership class, of the
member's final average salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years of credited
service, but not less than one-third of such salary nor greater than the benefit the member would have
had at normal retirement age. Members over normal retirement age may apply for disability benefits.
Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62 with at
least one year of credited service (age 65 with at least three years of credited service for Class T-E and
Class T-F members) or who has at least five years of credited service (ten years for Class T-E and Class
T-F members). Such benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit that would have been effective if
the member had retired on the day before death.
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NOTE 13 - Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)
Member Contributions
1.

Active members who joined the System prior to July 22, 1983, contribute at 5.25% (Membership
Class T-C) or at 6.50% (Membership Class T-D) of the member's qualifying compensation.

2.

Members who joined the System on or after July 22, 1983, and who were active or inactive as of
July 1, 2001, contribute at 6.25% (Membership Class T-C) or at 7.50% (Membership Class T-D)
of the member's qualifying compensation.

3.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2001 and before July 1, 2011, contribute at
7.50% (automatic Membership Class T-D). For all new hires and for members who elected Class
T-D membership, the higher contribution rates began with service rendered on or after January 1,
2002.

4.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2011, automatically contribute at the Membership
Class T-E rate of 7.5% (base rate) of the member's qualifying compensation. All new hires after
June 30, 2011, who elect Class T-F membership, contribute at 10.3% (base rate) of the
member's qualifying compensation. Membership Class T-E and T-F are affected by a "shared
risk" provision in Act 120 of 2010 that in future fiscal years could cause the Membership Class TE contribution rate to fluctuate between 7.5% and 9.5% and Membership Class T-F contribution
rate to fluctuate between 10.3% and 12. 3%.

Employer Contributions
The school districts' contractually required contribution rate for fiscal year ended June 30, 2015
was 20.50% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the pension plan from the
District were $6,372,47 4 for the year ended June 30, 2015.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2015, the District reported a liability of $95,429,000 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014 and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by rolling forward the System's total
pension liability as of June 30, 2013 to June 30, 2014. The District's proportion of the net pension liability
was calculated utilizing the employer's one-year reported covered payroll as it relates to the total oneyear reported covered payroll. At June 30, 2014, the District's proportion was .002411%, which was an
increase of $5, 178, 000 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2013.
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of $9,064,000. At
June 30, 2015, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

•
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NOTE 13 - Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual investment
Earnings
Changes in proportions
Difference between employer contributions and
proportionate share of total contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Deferred Outflows
Of Resources

Deferred Inflows
Of Resources

$

$

$

0
0

0
0

0

6,822,000

2,936,000

0

0
6,372,474
9,308,474

0
0

$

6,822,000

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date of $6,372,47 4 will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in the pension expense as follows:
Year ending June 30:
6/30/2015
6/30/2016
6/30/2017
6/30/2018
6/30/2019
Thereafter

$

998,000
998,000
998,000
998,000
(106,000)

$

3,886,000

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability as of June 30, 2014 was determined by rolling forward the System's total
pension liability as of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation to June 30, 2014 using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
• Actuarial cost method - Entry Age Normal - level % of pay
• Investment return - 7.50%, includes inflation at 3.00%
• Salary increases - Effective average of 5.50%, which reflects an allowance for inflation of 3.00%,
real wage growth of 1%, and merit or seniority increases of 1.50%
• Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Annuitant Tables (male and female)
with age set back 3 years for both males and females. For disabled annuitants the RP-2000
Combined Disabled Tables (male and female) with age set back 7 years for males and 3 years
for females.
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NOTE 13 - Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the experience
study that was performed for the five-year period ending June 30, 2010. The recommended assumption
changes based on this experience study were adopted by the Board at its March 11, 2011 Board
meeting, and were effective beginning with the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
The pension plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and may
be amended by the Board. Plan assets are managed with a long-term objective of achieving and
maintaining a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the pension.

Asset Class
Public markets global equity
Private markets (equity)
Private real estate
Global fixed income
U.S. long treasuries
TIPS
High yield bonds
Cash
Absolute return
Risk parity
MLPs/lnfrastructure
Commodities
Financing (LIBOR)

Target
Allocation
19%
21%
13%
8%
3%
12%
6%
3%
10%
5%
3%
6%
(9%)
100%

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return
5.0%
6.5%
4.7%
2.0%
1.4%
1.2%
1.7%
0.9%
4.8%
3.9%
5.3%
3.3%
1.1%

The above was the Board's adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric real
rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2014.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at
the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually required
rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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NOTE 13 - Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)
Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate
The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 7.50%, as
well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1percentage point lower (6.50%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.50%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
6.50%
District's Proportionate Share of
the Net Pension Liability

$ 119,035,000

Current
Discount Rate
7.50%

$

95,429,000

1% Increase
- - -8.50%
·----

$

75,277,000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about PSERS' fiduciary net position is available in PSERS Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report which can be found on the System's website at www.psers.state.pa.us.

NOTE 14 - Other Post-employment Benefits
Plan Description
The School District provides health benefits, which includes medical, prescription, dental, and
vision benefits, as a post-employment benefit to those retirees and their spouses, who meet the qualifying
criteria. The health insurance plan is a single employer, defined benefit OPEB plan. Life insurance is
also provided to specific groups.
The School District has the following groups of employees: teachers, administrators,
confidentials, and support staff, both union and non-union. The eligibility and duration of post-retirement
benefits for these groups are defined in either a Collective Bargaining Agreement or Compensation
Agreement. Otherwise, they may still qualify for benefits subject to Acts 110 and 43.
The medical, prescription drug, dental and vision benefits are self insured. Medical and
prescription benefits are administered by Independence Blue Cross. The dental and vision benefits are
through School Claims Services.
Funding Policy
A retiree may elect to continue his/her current benefit coverage. The amount that the retiree must
pay towards health benefits is defined in either a Collective Bargaining Agreement or Compensation
Agreement. The School District is responsible for funding the balance of the benefits.
As of June 30, 2015, the School District has no segregated assets to fund this liability. It is the
intention of the School District to pay claims as they are incurred.
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NOTE 14 - Other Post-employment Benefits (Continued)

Funding Progress
As of July 1, 2014, the date of the most recent actuarial report, the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits was $3, 729, 052, all of which was unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plan) was $27,949,208 and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability
to the covered payroll was 13.34%.
The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
· Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplemental information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative
to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and
include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actual value of assets, consistent with the long term perspective of the calculations.
In the July 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the entry age
actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.5% investment rate of return
(net of administrative expenses), which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on
plan assets and on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at
the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 6.5% initially, reduced by decrements of
.5% to a rate of 5.5% in 2016. Rates gradually decrease from 5.3% in 2017 to 4.2% in 2089 and later
based on the Society of Actuaries Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model. The actuarial value of assets
was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a five-year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. Amortization is based on a level dollar, 30 year open
period. Contributions rates for employees and the District are at varying rates. Additional information of
the plan may be obtained at the District's administrative office.

Annual OPEB Cost and NET OPEB Obligations
The District's annual other Post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based
on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC). The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and to amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of
the District's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan and the changes
in the District's net OPEB obligation.
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NOTE 14 - Other Post-employment Benefits (Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost:
Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation
Funding Adjustment
ANNUAL OPEB COST

$

417,976
14,205
(19,380)

$

412,801

Net OPEB Obligation:
Normal OPEB Obligation July 1, 2014

262,531

OPEB Cost for the year ended June 30, 2015
Estimated Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2015
NET OPEB OBLIGATION

412,801
(284,513)

---~~~

$

390,819

=======

The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed, and the net
OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30, 2015 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Annual
OPEB
Cost

Fiscal
Year
Ended
June 30, 2013
June 30, 2014
June 30, 2015

$

413,371
412,260
412,801

Percentage
of Annual
OPEB Cost
Contributed
89.54%
82.38%
68.92%

Net
OPEB
Obligation
$

189,885
262,531
390,819

NOTE 15 - Subsequent Events
The District has evaluated subsequent events through December 16, 2015, which represents the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.
In July 2015, the District authorized the incurrence of General Obligation Bonds in the principal
amount of $9,960,000 for the purpose of refunding a portion of the General Obligation Bonds of 2010.
In August 2015, the District authorized the incurrence of General Obligation Bonds in the principal
amount of $9,890,000 for the purpose of refunding a portion of the General Obligation Bonds of 2010.
In August 2015, the District authorized the incurrence of General Obligation Bonds in the principal
amount of $7,730,000 for the purpose of refunding a portion of the General Obligation Bonds of 201 O.
In September 2015, the District authorized the incurrence of General Obligation Bonds in the
principal amount of $9,040,000 for the purpose of funding a portion of the new costs related to
constructing the new Early Learning Center.
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General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Revenues:
Local Revenues
State Program Revenues
Federal Program Revenues
TOTAL REVENUES
Expenditures:
Regular Programs
Special Programs
Vocational Programs
Other Instructional Programs
Pupil Personnel Services
Instructional Staff Services
Administrative Services
Pupil Health
Business Services
Operation and Maintenance of
Plant Services
Student Transportation Services
Central and Other Support Services
Student Activities
Community Services
Debt Service
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Original
Budget

Amended
Budget

Actual

$ 67,425, 111

$ 67,125,111

$ 66,197,196

12,985,723
1, 170,000

13,285,723
1,170,000

14,043,042
1, 122,482

Variance
with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

(927,915)
757,319
(47,518)

____ ?_~~~?-~~~?-~-·----?-~L~?_QL~?-~-- ·---~1L~?..~L?~Q-. _______ {?_1~LJ_1~2.
32,786,495
11,782,668
2, 178,956
185,000
3,255,621
1,667,620
4,201,411
682,254
852,662

32,087,968
11,188,537
2,182,956
185,000
3,869,621
1,499,620
4,178,911
682,254
852,662

32,075,850
11,188,077
2, 182,619
59,560
3,859,505
1,493,873
4, 178,512
664,235
851,078

12, 118
460
337
125,440
10,116
5,747
399
18,019
1,584

5,549,903
4,065,514
1,942,734
1,490,057
65,000
9,946,310
80,652,205

5,476,903
4,490,514
1,655,674
1,550,057
65,000
9,971,310
79,936,987

5,460,456
4,485,780
1,653,445
1,549,661
57,906
9,968,478
79,729,035

16,447
4,734
2,229
396
7,094
2,832
207,952

(394,887)
(533,742)
(500,000)

(1,610, 105)
(533,742)
0

(1,609,565)
(533,742)
0

540
0
0

(1,428,629)

(2, 143,847)

(2, 143,307)

540

(500,000)

(500,000)

(509,622)

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
lnterfund Transfers Out
Transfer - Component Unit
Budgetary Reserve
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance - July 1, 2014
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2015

12,419,885

12,156,640

12,156,640

$ 11,919,885

$ 11,656,640

$ 11,647,018

(9,622)
0

$

(9,622)
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Schedule of Post Employment Benefit Obligation Funding Progress
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

July 1, 2010
July1,2012
July 1, 2014

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

$
$
$

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability (AAL)

0
0
0

$

3,345,566
3,843,804
3,729,052

Unfunded
AAL (UAAL)

$

3,345,566
3,843,804
3,729,052

Funded
Ratio

Covered
Payroll

0%
0%
0%

$ 28,208,311
27,884,395
27,949,208

UAAL as a
Percentage of
Covered Payroll

11.86%
13.78%
13.34%

Cl?g

iner

Company
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A Professional C

Certified Public Accountants
Business Consultants

Year
Ended
June 30, 2014

PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

District's
Proportion of the
Net Pension
Liability (Asset)
0.2411%

District's
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability (Asset)
$95,429,000

District's
Covered
Payroll
$30,764,754

Net Pension
Liability (Asset)
as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll ·
310.19%

Fiduciary Net
Position as a
Percentage
of the Total
Pension Liability
-61.47%

{j?g~f~I"!c
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Certified Public Accountants
Business Consultants

Year
Ended
June 30, 2013
June 30, 2014

PHOENIXVILLE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of the District's Pension Contributions
For the Year Ended June 30 2015

Contractually
Required
Contribution
$3,627,762
4,803,000

Contributions
in Relation to
the Contractually
Required
Contribution
($3,627, 762)
(4,803,000)

Contribution
Excess/
(Deficiency)

District's
Covered
Payroll
$0
0

$29,804,494
30,764,754

Contributions
as a
Percentage of
Covered
Payroll
12.17%
15.61%

